
UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF TEXAS 

HOUSTON DIVISION 
 

 
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA § 
 § 
v. § CRIMINAL NO. H-19-341 
 § 
JOSE MANUEL GONZALEZ  § 
TESTINO, §           
          § 
DEFENDANT        § 
          § 

 
 

GOVERNMENT’S MOTION TO DISMISS 
 
 The United States, by and through its attorneys, respectfully submits this 

Motion to Dismiss the Information and all charges  in the above referenced case.  In 

support of this motion, the government states the following: 

1. Jose Manuel Gonzalez Testino (the “Defendant”) was charged by Complaint 

on July 27, 2018 (DE 1) and was arrested on July 31, 2018, in the Southern 

District of Florida. 

2. On May14, 2019,  the government filed an Information against the Defendant 

charging him with three counts.  (DE 36).  Count One charged the Defendant 

with conspiracy to violate the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act (“FCPA”), in 

violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 371.  Count Two charged 

the Defendant with a substantive violation of the FCPA, in violation of 15 

Case 4:19-cr-00341   Document 204   Filed on 01/02/24 in TXSD   Page 1 of 4



2 
 

U.S.C. § 78dd-2.  Count Three charged the Defendant with failing to file a 

Foreign Bank Account Report (FBAR), in violation of 31 U.S.C. §§ 5314 and 

5322(a). 

3. On May 29, 2019, Defendant pleaded guilty to Counts One, Two and Three 

of the Information.  (DE 50).   

4. On March 1, 2023, the Defendant perished.  (See Ex. 1, Certification of 

Death). 

WHEREFORE, the government respectfully requests that the Court enter an 

order dismissing the Information and all charges against the decedent and closing 

this case. 

Respectfully submitted, 
 
 GLENN LEON    ALAMDAR HAMDANI 
 Chief, Fraud Section   U.S. ATTORNEY 
 Criminal Division    Southern District of Texas 
 United States Department of Justice      
 
 /s/ Marihug P. Cedeno          /s/ Robert S. Johnson                                                                   
 MARIHUG P. CEDEÑO   ROBERT S. JOHNSON 
 MICHAEL DILORENZO  ASSISTANT U.S. ATTORNEY 
 TRIAL ATTORNEYS    
 SONALI D. PATEL 
 ASSISTANT CHIEF        
  
 Fraud Section, Criminal Division U.S. Attorney’s Office 
 U.S. Department of Justice   Southern District of Texas  
 1400 New York Avenue, N.W.  1000 Louisiana, Ste. 2300 
 Washington, D.C.  20530   Houston, TX 77002 
 Tel: (202) 558-8556   Tel: (713) 567-9342    
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CERTIFICATE OF CONFERENCE 
 

I certify that on January 2, 2024, the undersigned counsel for the government 

conferred with Edward R. Shohat, counsel for Defendant Jose Manuel Gonzalez 

Testino, regarding the nature of the foregoing motion, and counsel does not oppose. 

 

/s/  Marihug P. Cedeno           
MARIHUG P. CEDEÑO  
Trial Attorney 

        Fraud Section, Criminal Division 
U.S. Department of Justice 
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I hereby certify that, on January 2, 2024, I electronically filed the foregoing 

motion with the Clerk of the Court using the ECF/CM system for filing and service 

on all counsel of record. 

 

/s/  Marihug P. Cedeno           
MARIHUG P. CEDEÑO  
Trial Attorney 

        Fraud Section, Criminal Division 
U.S. Department of Justice 
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Exhibit 1 
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